
 

*NOTICE: Attendees may also join the meeting virtually via phone, tablet, or computer by the following: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/700464405 or by dialing +1 (872) 240-3412 with access code 700-464-405 

 

 

 
 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

OFFICIAL AGENDA & NOTICE 
 

A meeting of the Town of Rib Mountain Plan Commission will be held on JUNE 10, 2020; 6:00 P.M. AT THE TOWN OF RIB 

MOUNTAIN MUNICIPAL CENTER, 227800 SNOWBIRD AVENUE*.  The Town Board may attend for purposes of gathering 
information.  Subject matter for consideration and possible action follows: 
 

1.) Call to Order 
 

2.) Roll Call  
 

3.) Minutes 
a. Approval of minutes from the May 13, 2020 Plan Commission meeting. 
 

4.) Old Business(s): 

a. None 

 

5.) Public Hearing (s) 

a. Docket #2020-08: Discussion and recommendation on a requested Conditional Use Permit for a second 

driveway at 225986 Deer Tail lane. 

 

6.) New Business(s): 

a. Preapplication meeting with Streets and Park Superintendent regarding a future disc golf course at Liberty 

Park. 

 

7.) Comprehensive Plan Update: 

a. Resolution #PC-2020-01: Recommending approval of the 2020 Town of Rib Mountain Comprehensive Plan to 

the Town Board. 

 

8.) Correspondence/ Questions/ Town Board Update: 

a. Report from Director of Community Development 

b. May 2020 Building Permit Report 

 

9.) Public Comment 

  

10.)  Adjourn 

  

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/700464405


 

1 
 

TOWN OF RIB MOUNTAIN 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

May 13, 2020 
 

Acting Chairperson Ryan Burnett called the meeting of the Plan Commission to order at 6:00 pm.  Other 

Plan Commission members present included Tom Steele, Jim Hampton, Steve Plunkett, and Mary Kate 

Riordan. Tonia Westphal was in attendance via GoToMeeting.  Also present were Director of Community 

Development,  Jared Wehner and Building  Inspector / Assistant Zoning Administrator, Paul Kufahl.    Jay 

Wittman was excused.   

MINUTES: 

Motion by Tom Steele, second by Jim Hampton to approve the minutes of the March 11th, 2020 

Plan Commission meeting.  Motion carried 6‐0.   

 

OLD BUSINESS: None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING(S): 

a. Docket #2020‐05: Discussion and recommendation on a requested Conditional Use Permit for a 

Temporary Asphalt Plant (Unclassified Use) at 147037 County Road N. 

Director  of  Community  Development,  Jared  Wehner  stated  the  applicant  requests  conditional  use 

approval  for  a  temporary  asphalt  plant  at  the  property  addressed  147037  County  Road  N,  which  is 

adjacent to the Town’s Yard Waste Site.  He noted the applicant has indicated hours of operation from 

6:00am to 7:00pm Monday thru Saturday and an expiration of October 1, 2020, which is one month longer 

than previous approvals.  Wehner also stated the applicant is required to clean up any debris tracked onto 

public right‐of‐way by the end the workday, use County Roads whenever possible, and notify and receive 

approval from the Streets and Park Superintendent if they intend to use Town Roads. 

Jim Hampton questioned why there is a need for an additional month of operations.  Wehner indicated 

they had an unknown schedule and the additional time would also allow for weather delays.   

Tom Steele asked the Commission if they would also consider a requirement that the site also be cleaned 

at the end of their term. 

Matt Eslinger, a representative from American Asphalt noted they did not have a timeline for Marathon 

County’s projects at the time of submittal, but know have a better‐defined project scope.  He stated they 

plan to open the asphalt plant by the second week in June and the County’s projects will last four to five 

weeks.  County projects will account for the majority of their work, but they will also be completing some 

Town road projects, as well as, some private contracts.  He anticipated they would be off the site by the 

end of July.  As for the site cleanup request, the Eslinger indicated there would likely be some aggregate 

and recycled asphalt left over on the site, but that is typical of many open mining and asphalt plant sites.   

Steele asked if the property owner was aware of and okay with the left‐over materials. 



 

2 
 

 

Eslinger  indicated  they  are  the  property  owner  as well,  so  the  left‐over materials would  not  cause  a 

problem. 

Steve Plunkett questioned how the applicant accesses the site and the anticipated number of trucks on a 

given day.   

Eslinger noted they access the site through a shared access with the Town’s Yard Waste Site and that the 

County has 10 to 15 trucks they may use in a given day along with any local projects they may be working 

on. 

Burnett opened and closed the Public Hearing at 6:09pm, receiving no public comment. 

Motion by Jim Hampton, second by Tom Steele to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Request 

for a Temporary Asphalt Plant (Unclassified Use) at 147037 County Road N. 

Motion carried 6‐0.   

 

b. Docket #2020‐06: Discussion and recommendation on a requested Conditional Use Permit for a 

Detached Garage in excess of 1,000 square feet at 227800 Snowbird Avenue. 

Paul Kufahl, Building Inspector, noted the Town of Rib Mountain and the Lions Club of Rib Mountain have 

entered into an agreement to construct and lease a garage on the Town’s property to serve as long‐term 

vehicle storage and wash bay (Lion’s Club side only). The Town will store its two municipal vehicles on its 

side while the Lion’s Club stores their food truck/trailer with a wash bay.  He noted the building will be 

just over 1500 square feet and will be served with electric, gas, sewer and water.  In conjunction with the 

garage facility, the Lion’s Club has agreed to help fund the creation on a new park on the Municipal Center 

property.  The Town does not currently have a park design, but it will likely be developed two to three 

years from now.  Kufahl also noted that construction of this new garage facility would result in the removal 

of the current utility shed. 

Burnett asked if both Municipal Center parcels would be combined prior to construction.  Kufahl noted 

they have already been combined. 

Hampton  asked  the  Commission  if  they would  entertain  restricting  the  number  of  plumbing  fixtures 

allowed so it minimizes the opportunity for someone to reside in the building.  Steele indicated it would 

be reasonable to restrict the building to toilets and sinks only and not allow for tubs and showers similar 

to restriction imposed on other residential detached buildings. 

Gerald Kostroski, a member of the public in attendance, expressed concern that approval of the project 

would open  it up  to additional  similar  requests.   Wehner and Kufahl  indicated  that  such  requests are 

regularly  made  for  other  residential  properties  throughout  Town  and  there  is  a  maximum  detached 

building  area  permitted  via  conditional  use.    It  was  also  noted  that  no  other  organizations  have 

approached the Town for similar requests. 

Burnett asked if the addition of floor drains introduces any complexities to the process and if there was 

plan  to heat  the  structure  in  the winter.   Kufahl  indicated  floor drains are  required  to have  sediment 



 

3 
 

baskets to reduce items from entering the sewer system, but connection of floor drains to public sewers 

are permitted by the Sanitary District and the State Plumbing Code.  He also noted they will be roughing 

in gas for the potential addition of Modine style heaters.  It may be required to keep the building at a 

minimum temperature if the Town decides to keep the sewer and water active during the winter months. 

Steele questioned the exterior appearance of the building.  Kufahl noted they intend to match the current 

Municipal Building façade as much as possible. 

Burnett opened and closed the meeting to public comment at 6:25pm, receiving no comments. 

Motion  by  Tom  Steele,  second  by  Steve  Plunkett  to  recommend  approval  of  the  Conditional  Use 

Request for a Detached Garage in excess of 1,000 square feet at 227800 Snowbird Avenue. 

Hampton questioned whether the motion should include the restriction of plumbing fixtures.   

Amended Motion by Tom Steele, second by Steve Plunkett to recommend approval of the Conditional 

Use  Request  for  a  Detached  Garage  in  excess  of  1,000  square  feet  at  227800  Snowbird  Avenue; 

conditioned upon no tub or shower facilities being allowed. 

Motion carried 6‐0.   

 

NEW BUSINESS: None 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE: 

a. Discussion and approval of the final draft of the Comprehensive Plan document 

Wehner  noted  the  document  provided  to  the  Commission  represents  the  possible  Final  Draft  of  the 

Comprehensive Plan.   He  stated all  feedback  received has been  incorporated,  including  a  request  for 

changes to the documents color scheme and modifications of the Vision Statement.   He read the new 

Vision Statement aloud and entertained other modifications.   

Riordan requested the Vision Statement be moved ahead of the preceding paragraph or the paragraph 

be modified to make the flow of the document more cohesive. 

Wehner indicated the next steps in the process would be to work with the North Central Regional Planning 

Commission to update all of the maps, open the 45‐day public comment period and then proceed with 

approval of the document.  He anticipated it would be early July before the document would be officially 

adopted.  After the document is adopted, the Commission would then work on updates to the Official 

Map. 

Riordan asked when staff planned to begin the Zoning Code revisions. 

Wehner hoped to begin those revisions in 2021.  He stated that staff will be having a Strategic Planning 

session with the Town Board in June where they will discuss possible projects for the upcoming years.  

Wehner noted he is considering use of a form‐based zoning code and the creation of a steering committee 

to help hash out key issues. 



 

4 
 

Motion by Jim Hampton, second by Tom Steele to approve the final draft document and direct staff to 

work with the NCWRPC on final changes to all maps and start the approval process. 

Motion carried 6‐0.   

 

CORRESPONDENCE / QUESTIONS / TOWN BOARD UPDATE:   

a. Report from Director of Community Development 

 

‐ Wehner indicated the Town is working with Mi‐Tech to upgrade the Town’s GIS services to 

ArcOnline, allowing staff to have additional data manipulation capabilities. 

‐ Staff met with representatives of Scherrer Construction to discuss a potential parcel split for the 

development of an additional office building. 

‐ Staff met with REI and Royalty Custom Homes to discuss the potential division of Lot 32 of Royal 

View Estates to facilitate the sale of the existing farmhouse, the combination of additional land 

with Lot 36 and the creation of a developable parcel at the corner of County Road N and 

Bittersweet Rd. 

‐ Wehner noted he received a preliminary plan for a medical office that would be located on the 

corner of Rib Mountain Drive and Goose Lane near Nice as New. 

 

b. April 2020 Building Permit Report 

 

‐ Kufahl indicated that after a slow start to the construction season, permit activity has increased 

significantly in the past month.  He stated there have been three new single‐family home 

permits, three new commercial building permits and a number of residential fence and 

accessory building requests. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   None 

 

ADJOURN:   

Motion by Tom Steele, second by Jim Hampton to adjourn the Plan Commission Meeting.   

Motion carried 6‐0.  Meeting adjourned at 6:49 pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Paul Kufahl, Building Inspector / Assistant Zoning Administrator 



 
 

 
227800 SNOWBIRD AVENUE | WAUSAU, WI 54401 | TOWNOFRIBMOUNTAIN.ORG 

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

MEETING/DATE: Plan Commission, June 10, 2020 

ITEM: Docket #2020-08: Discussion and recommendation on a requested Conditional Use 
Permit for a second driveway at 225986 Deer Tail lane. 

FROM: Jared Wehner, Director of Community Development 
 

APPLICANT & PROPERTY INFORMATION 

APPLICANT: Kyle Page, 225986 Deer Tail Lane, Wausau, WI 54401 

OWNER: Kyle Page, 225986 Deer Tail Lane, Wausau, WI 54401 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 225986 Deer Tail Lane 

PIN: 068-2807-103-0190 

ZONING: SR-3 – Suburban Residential 

ADJACENT ZONING: NORTH: SR-3 SOUTH: SR-3/OR EAST: SR-3 WEST: OR 

FUTURE LAND USE: Future Single-Family Residential 
 

BACKGROUND 

The property owner purchased the adjacent parcel to the south of their home at 228986 Deer Tail Lane and 
has been combined via the recorded parcel combination form provided by the County. Currently, the 
property owner is facing some difficulties with the steeper grade of the existing driveway during the winter 
months, particularly when conditions are slippery. The proposed second driveway would be lesser grade, 
approximately 10% versus the approximate 20% grade of the existing driveway. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS: None 

STAFF COMMENTS: See Determination Report (attached) 

ATTACHMENTS: Conditional Use Determination Report, Draft CUP Approval, Zoning Map, Proposed 
Site Plan, Project Narrative and Application 

 

POSSIBLE ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN 

See Determination Report (attached)  

REQUESTED ACTION: Recommend approving option A on the attached Determination Report. 

FURTHER ACTION(S): Forward the Plan Commission recommendation to the Town Board on 6/16 [Staff] 

 





 
 
 
 
 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT DETERMINATION REPORT 

FROM: Jared Wehner, Zoning Administrator 

DOCKET NO. 2020-008 HEARING DATE: June 10, 2020 

APPLICANT: Kyle Page, 225986 Deer Tail Lane, Wausau, WI 54401 

OWNER: Kyle Page, 225986 Deer Tail Lane, Wausau, WI 54401 

LOCATION: 225986 Deer Tail Lane, Lots 5 and 6 of Woodlawn Pines Plantation subdivision, now described as Lot 1 
of Certified Survey Map 15869 filed with the Register of Deeds of Marathon County, Wisconsin on Page 
140 Volume 72 of surveys and Lot 7 of Woodlawn Pines Plantation subdivision, part of Section 10, T28N 
R7E, Town of Rib Mountain, Marathon County, Wisconsin. 

DESCRIPTION: Requesting a second driveway access to a single parcel on the same street in a SR-3 residential district 

The Department of Community Development of the Town of Rib Mountain, pursuant to the Town of Rib Mountain Zoning Code, 
Subchapter 11 Processes, Section 17.225 Conditional Use Procedures, hereby makes the following findings and evaluation to the 
Town of Rib Mountain Plan Commission: 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

ZONING: SR-3 Suburban Residential 

DEFINITION: 17.035(2)(F) 

This district is intended to permit development which has a moderate density, suburban community 
character. This district is intended to be used for single-family areas served by both public water and 
public sanitary sewer. Density and intensity standards for this district are designed to ensure that the 
Suburban Residential (SR-3) District shall serve as a designation which preserves and protects the 
suburban residential community character of its area. A variety of residential development options are 
available in this district, with a Maximum Gross Density (MGD) of 3 dwelling units per gross acre. 

Rationale: This district is used to provide for the permanent protection of a moderate density residential 
area for those who want to live in an suburban residential environment and who retain enough land with 
their residence, or in their development, to ensure that the suburban community character is maintained 
as long as the Suburban Residential (SR-3) District designation is retained, regardless of how much 
development occurs within that area. 

LAND USE: Property Access  

DEFINITION SECTION: 
17.172 

The purpose of this Subsection is to alleviate or prevent congestion of public rights-of-way so as to 
promote the safety and general welfare of the public by establishing minimum requirements for the 
provision of access to public rights-of-way in accordance with the utilization of various sites. 

 

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

(4)  Residential Uses: Residential uses shall not have access 
points onto a nonresidential collector or arterial street unless 
such street has the only available frontage. 

Meets requirements. 

Deer Tail Lane is a residential local road. 

(6)  Access Near Street Intersections: At its intersection with the 
street right-of-way line on an arterial or nonresidential collector 
street, no access point shall be located closer than 100 feet from 
the intersection of any 2 street rights-of-way unless such street 
is the only available frontage on the subject property. In all 
cases, access points shall be located as far from an intersection 
as the lot size permits. 

Meets requirements. 

There is not an intersection within 100 feet of the proposed 
driveway. 



(7)  Distance Between Access Drives: The minimum distance 
between access drives serving the same property shall be 25 feet 
(edge to edge), as measured at the property line. A distance in 
excess of said 25 feet may be required if, in the opinion of the 
Zoning Administrator and the Director of Public Works, present 
or projected traffic factors warrant a greater distance. 

Meets requirements. 

200 feet to nearest driveway. Property to the south is 
undeveloped at this time. 

(8)  Angle of Intersection with Public Right-of-Way: All access 
drives shall intersect with any public right-of-way at an angle of 
not less than 75 degrees and shall intersect at an angle of 90 
degrees wherever possible. 

Meets requirements. 

Driveway turns to be perpendicular with the road. 

(9)  Distance from Property Line: The distance from an access 
drive to the property line of an adjacent property shall not be 
less than 5 feet, as measured along the right-of-way line unless 
the driveway is shared with the adjacent property in which case 
the driveway may be located on the property line or the 
driveway may straddle the property line. Driveways serving a 
corner lot shall not be located closer than 35 feet from the 
intersection of the right-of-way of the 2 intersecting streets. 

Meets requirements. 

The driveway is proposed to be 10 feet from the nearest lot line. 

(10)  Width of Driveways: All access drives shall have a minimum 
width of 10 feet for one-family and two-family dwellings, and 18 
feet for all other land uses. All curb openings for access drives 
shall have a maximum width of 25 feet for all residential uses, 
and 35 feet for all non-residential uses, as measured at the right-
of-way line. Access drives may be flared between the right-of-
way line and the roadway up to a maximum of 5 additional feet. 

Meets requirements. 

Width is 25 feet at lot line and 35 feet at the road, with 5-foot 
flares. 

(11)  Traffic Control: The traffic generated by any use shall be 
channelized and controlled in a manner which avoids congestion 
on public streets and other safety hazards. Traffic into and out 
of all off-street parking, loading and traffic circulation areas 
serving 6 or more parking spaces shall be forward moving, with 
no backing into streets or pedestrian ways. Traffic control 
devices shall be required as determined by the Director of Public 
Works. 

Meets requirements. 

Driveway is for standard residential use and will not cause an 
increase in traffic. 

(12)  Depiction on Required Site Plan: Any and all proposed 
access drives on the subject property shall be depicted as to 
their location and configuration on the site plan required for 
the development of the subject property. 

Meets requirements. 

A site plan showing all required specs has been provided. 

(13)  Paving of Access: All access approach areas located within 
a street right-of-way shall be paved to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Public Works with a hard, all-weather surface 
(concrete or asphalt), and shall be maintained so as to prevent 
the transport of gravel, dirt, or other eroded material from the 
subject property into the right-of-way. 

Meets requirements. 

Driveway will be poured concrete. Apron will be concrete due to 
there being curb and gutter on Deer Tail Lane. 

 

DETERMINATION / FINDING OF FACT 

1. How is the proposed conditional use permit (the use in general) in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and 
standards of the Town of Rib Mountain Comprehensive Plan, this Chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, 
or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the Town 

 The proposed second driveway is intended for residential use and will increase safety by easing ingress and egress to the 
property during slippery conditions in winter months. The overall impact on neighboring properties and the neighborhood will 
be insignificant. 

 



2. How is the proposed conditional use permit (in its specific location) in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies 
and standards of the Town of Rib Mountain Comprehensive Plan, this Chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the Town? 

 The proposed second driveway is intended for residential use and will increase safety by easing ingress and egress to the 
property during slippery conditions in winter months. The overall impact on neighboring properties and the neighborhood will 
be insignificant. 

 

3. Is it likely that the proposed conditional use permit, in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan (see 
(3)(d), above), will have an adverse impact on the use of adjacent property, the neighborhood, the physical environment, 
pedestrian or vehicular traffic, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way or other matters affecting the 
public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the regulations or recommendations of this Chapter, the Comprehensive Master Plan, or any other plan, 
program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the Town or other governmental 
agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development? 

 The immediate impact for the proposed second driveway would be an increase in stormwater runoff from the additional hard 
surface. The curb and gutter on the street are designed to accommodate, as the total number of driveways in the subdivision 
is not being increased at this time. The long-term impact would be a residential home in not able to be constructed on this lot 
(which has ben combined), particularly in a time when there is a high demand for new homes.  

 

4. Does the proposed conditional use permit maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use 
impacts as related to the environs of the subject property? 

 The proposed second driveway will not change the current or future residential land use. The property owner did purchase the 
neighboring lot on which the driveway will exist upon, which did exclude the potential for an additional home to be constructed.  

 

5. Is the proposed conditional use permit located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an undue 
burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by public agencies serving the subject property? 

 Deer Tail Lane is constructed with adequate curb and gutter to serve the subdivisions stormwater needs. This driveway will 
have an insignificant impact on that system.  

 

6. Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use permit outweigh any and all potential adverse impacts of the 
proposed conditional use (as identified in Subsections 1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration any proposal by 
the Applicant and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts? 

 Yes, the additional access to the property will allow for a safer ingress and egress during slippery conditions in the winter 
months, thus creating safer conditions at that time. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The property owner purchased the adjacent parcel to the south of their home at 228986 Deer Tail Lane and has been combined via 
the recorded parcel combination form provided by the County. Currently, the property owner is facing some difficulties with the 
steeper grade of the existing driveway during the winter months, particularly when conditions are slippery. The proposed second 
driveway would be lesser grade, approximately 10% versus the approximate 20% grade of the existing driveway. 

CURRENT PROPERTY CONDITIONS 

The property has one single-family detached home and the now-combined parcel to the south is idle. Both lots are significantly 
wooded and on a steeper slope. The home is approximately 100 feet from the road. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

The second driveway will be the same material and look of the existing driveway. With the lesser grade, it will provide a safer ingress 
and egress to the property during the winter months. The location of the drive is not directly across from the driveway that is 
immediately across the street. This is a best practice, as it reduces the number of points of conflict in roadways; however, within 
this subdivision that best practice has not been followed.   

POSSIBLE ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN 

A. Recommend the Board of Supervisors approves the application for a conditional use allowing for the installation of a second 
driveway, at 225986 Deer Tail Lane, with the following conditions: 



1. Construction of the second driveway shall be in accordance with the performance standards of aforementioned ordinance 
sections and what depicted on the Site Plan and Building Specifications on EXHIBIT A (as approved by the Building Permit); 

2. The total number of driveways accessing the parcel described above shall not exceed two (2). 
3. Any future additions, modifications or changes in said site plan and/or building plan, beyond those described in, on and 

within the boundary depicted on the Site Plan, or those depicted on the Building Specifications shall be approved by the 
Plan Commission and Town Board of Supervisors through the modification process of the precise implementation plan, as 
described in Section 17.233, in advance of any construction or modification; 

4. Should the work associated with the building permit not be completed and inspected prior to the permit expiring, then 
this approval shall be revoked, per Section 17.233(6)(h); 

5. No use is hereby authorized unless the use is conducted in a lawful, orderly, and peaceful manner. Nothing herein shall be 
deemed to authorize any public or private nuisance or to constitute a waiver, exemption, or exception to any law, 
ordinance, order or rule by the Town, Marathon County, State of Wisconsin, United States or other duly constituted 
authority, except only to the extent that it authorizes the use of the Subject Property in any specific respects described 
herein; and 

6. Should any paragraphs or phase of herein be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unlawful, illegal, or 
unconstitutional, said determination as to the particular phrase or paragraph shall not void the remainder of this 
conditional use and the remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

B. Defer action on the precise implementation plan based on insufficient material/evidence provided by the applicant or 
uncertainty among the commissioners based on evidence presented at the public hearing. A decision shall be made within 60 
days of opening the public hearing. If the Plan Commission chooses not to make a recommendation or fails to make a 
recommendation to the Town Board within 45 days of the public hearing, the request for a precise implementation plan shall 
be forwarded to the Town Board without a Plan Commission recommendation. 
 

C. Recommend the Board of Supervisors deny the application for the conditional use based on substantial evidence (or lack 
thereof) provided at the public hearing. 

 

 



2101

4220

4325

4260

4180

4280

4160

4285

4265

4245

4215

4225

4195

4300

4185

4345

D
EER

 TAIL LN

Parcels Outline

Parcel Address

Zoning Districts
(Sept 2017)
Zoning
Districts

Unzoned

CR-5ac
Countryside
Residential

EO Estate Office

ER-1 Estate
Residential

MR-4 Mixed
Residential

NC Neighborhood
Commercial

OR Outdoor
Recreation

RA-1 Rural
Agricultural

RA-2 Rural
Agricultural

ROW

RR Rural
Residential

SC Suburban
Commercial

SI  Suburban
Industrial

SO Suburban
Office

SR-2 Suburban
Residential

SR-3 Suburban
Residential

UC Urban
Commercial

UDD Unified
Development

UR-8 Urban
Residential

Building Outline

Road Centerline

Water Feature

Water Feature

Rib Mountain: 
"Where Nature, Family, and 

Sport Come Together"

DISCLAIMER: The information and depictions contained herein are
for informational purposes only; Mi-Tech specifically disclaims
accuracy in this reproduction and advises that if specific and precise
accuracy is required that certified maps, surveys, plats, or other
official means be obtained.  There is no Statement of Accurracy for
any parcel data; the parcel layer is considered an Index Parcel Layer
not a Cadastral Parcel Layer. For planing purposes only.

Prepared by:

Map Printed: 6/2/2020

www.mi-tech.us

0 14070

Feet

±

pkufahl
Polygonal Line



 

Page 1 of 2  CUP #2020-008 – KYLE B. PAGE AND ELIZABETH B. PAGE  

TOWN OF RIB MOUNTAIN, MARATHON COUNTY, WI 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2020-008 

 

This CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT is issued as of 16th day of June 2020, by the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS of the Town 

of Rib Mountain to the KYLE PAGE AND ELIZABETH B. PAGE, 225986 Deer Tail Lane, property owner. 
 

 WHEREAS, the KYLE N. PAGE AND ELIZABETH B. PAGE, is the owner of the property described below in 

the Town of Rib Mountain, and said owner intends to construct a SEOND DRIVEWAY ON THE SAME STREET 

FRONTAGE. The said property upon which said activity is to take place is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lots 5 and 6 of Woodlawn Pines Plantation subdivision, now described as Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map 

15869 filed with the Register of Deeds of Marathon County, Wisconsin on Page 140 Volume 72 of surveys 

and Lot 7 of Woodlawn Pines Plantation subdivision; part of Section 10, T28N R7E, Town of Rib 

Mountain, Marathon County, Wisconsin; more commonly known as 225986 Deer Tail Lane. 
 

 WHEREAS, the property described above is in the SR-3 SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL base zoning district of the 

Town of Rib Mountain, which permits the construction of a SEOND DRIVEWAY ON THE SAME STREET FRONTAGE 

in said zoning district through conditional grant; and 
 

 WHEREAS, KYLE N. PAGE AND ELIZABETH B. PAGE has requested a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT for 

the property, Section 17.225 Conditional Use Procedures, so as to allow the use of a SEOND DRIVEWAY ON THE SAME 

STREET FRONTAGE on said premise; and 
 

 WHEREAS, a petition for a Conditional Use Permit having been duly filed with the Town Zoning Administrator, 

and placed on the Plan Commission agenda after first being assured by Town professional staff review that the application 

is complete, and following staff review and Plan Commission review, investigation and a public hearing which was held 

June 10, 2020, the Plan Commission after giving full consideration to the criteria and standards for granting a Conditional 

Use Permit, as set forth in the Town Ordinance, including Section 17.233(6), recommend approval of said application in 

writing to the Board of Supervisors. 
 

 WHEREAS, upon the discontinuance of the use of a SEOND DRIVEWAY ON THE SAME STREET FRONTAGE 

on said premise for a period exceeding 365 days, the issuance of the CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT shall automatically 

become invalidated. The burden of proof shall be on the property owner to conclusively demonstrate that the conditional 

use was operating during this period. 
 

 WHEREAS, all requirements of the approved Conditional Use Permit shall be continued regardless of ownership 

of the subject property and shall run with the land, except where limited by the zoning code or by a specific condition 

attached to this conditional use grant herein. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Supervisors of the Town of Rib Mountain, in Marathon 

County, Wisconsin, here by grant the KYLE N. PAGE AND ELIZABETH B. PAGE a Conditional Use Permit for the 

property described above, for the use of SEOND DRIVEWAY ON THE SAME STREET FRONTAGE as defined in 

Section 17.172(3)(d) of the Town Zoning Ordinance. The conditions for the issuance of the conditional use permit are as 

follows: 
 

1. Construction of the second driveway shall be in accordance with the performance standards of aforementioned 

ordinance sections and what depicted on the Site Plan and Building Specifications on EXHIBIT A (as approved 

by the Building Permit); 

2. The total number of driveways accessing the parcel described above shall not exceed two (2). 

3. Any future additions, modifications or changes in said site plan and/or building plan, beyond those described 

in, on and within the boundary depicted on the Site Plan, or those depicted on the Building Specifications shall 

be approved by the Plan Commission and Town Board of Supervisors through the modification process of the 

precise implementation plan, as described in Section 17.233, in advance of any construction or modification; 

4. Should the work associated with the building permit not be completed and inspected prior to the permit expiring, 

then this approval shall be revoked, per Section 17.233(6)(h); 

5. No use is hereby authorized unless the use is conducted in a lawful, orderly, and peaceful manner. Nothing 

herein shall be deemed to authorize any public or private nuisance or to constitute a waiver, exemption, or 



 

Page 2 of 2  CUP #2020-008 – KYLE B. PAGE AND ELIZABETH B. PAGE  

exception to any law, ordinance, order or rule by the Town, Marathon County, State of Wisconsin, United States 

or other duly constituted authority, except only to the extent that it authorizes the use of the Subject Property in 

any specific respects described herein; and 

6. Should any paragraphs or phase of herein be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unlawful, 

illegal, or unconstitutional, said determination as to the particular phrase or paragraph shall not void the 

remainder of this conditional use and the remainder shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

All of the uses permitted in the SR-3 SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL Zoning District shall continue to be permitted on said 

premises and in addition thereto, the uses described in this Conditional Use Permit or Conditional Grant are hereby allowed 

on said premises.  

 

Violation of any of the terms, provisions or conditions of this CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT may, pursuant to the 

Ordinances of the Town of Rib Mountain, result in termination of the rights and privileges granted herein 

 

Dated this 16th day of June 2020 

         

TOWN OF RIB MOUNTAIN BOARD OF SURPERVISORS 

 

 

By:  

 Fred Schaefer, its Acting Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Jared Wehner, Zoning Administrator  

 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN) 

            )ss. 

COUNTY OF MARATHON) 

 

 Personally, came before this ______ day of March 2020, the above-named Fred Schaefer, Acting Chair, Jared 

Wehner, Zoning Administrator, and Kyle Page, property owner, to me known to be the persons who execute the forgoing 

instrument and acknowledge the same. 

 

 

 Notary Public 

 

 

My Commission expires on _____________________. 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: 

Jared M. Wehner, Zoning Administrator 

Community Development, Town of Rib Mountain 
227800 Snowbird Avenue, Wausau, WI 54401 





















 
 

 
227800 SNOWBIRD AVENUE | WAUSAU, WI 54401 | TOWNOFRIBMOUNTAIN.ORG 

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

MEETING/DATE: Plan Commission, June 10, 2020 

ITEM: Preapplication meeting with Streets and Park Superintendent regarding a future disc 
golf course at Liberty Park. 

FROM: Jared Wehner, Director of Community Development 
 

APPLICANT & PROPERTY INFORMATION 

APPLICANT: Scott Turner, Superintendent of Streets and Parks, Town of Rib Mountain 

OWNER: Rib Mountain Sanitary District 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 225986 Deer Tail Lane 

PIN: 068-2807-231-0082 

ZONING: SR-3 – Suburban Residential 

ADJACENT ZONING: NORTH: SR-3 SOUTH: SR-3 EAST: SR-3 WEST: SR-3 

FUTURE LAND USE: Future Recreational 
 

BACKGROUND 

Park Commission has directed staff to investigate the development of a 9-hole disc golf course at Liberty 
Park. This type of use falls under the Outdoor Active Recreation, which requires special use approval 
through the Plan Commission. This is a preapplication to gather information from Plan Commission prior to 
being sent off for engineered drawings. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS: None 

STAFF COMMENTS: None 

ATTACHMENTS: First Draft Sketch of Proposed 9-Hole Disc Golf Course 
 

POSSIBLE ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN 

Give direction to staff for development.  

REQUESTED ACTION: Give direction to staff for development. 

FURTHER ACTION(S): A formal application for a special use permit will be submitted once design work has 
been completed [Staff]. 

 
  



LA
K
E
S
H
O

R
E
 D

R

L
IB

E
R

T
Y

 A
V

R
A

I N
B

O
W

 L
N

S
U

N
R

IS
E

 L
N

E LAKESHORE DR

MOONLITE AV

LAKESHORE DR LAKESHORE DR

L
IB

E
R

T
Y

 A
V

Parcels Outline

Paved Road
ROW

DISCLAIMER: The information and depictions contained herein are for informational purposes only; Mi-Tech specifically disclaims accuracy in this reproduction and advises that if

specific and precise accuracy is required that certified maps, surveys, plats, or other official means be obtained.  There is no Statement of Accurracy for any parcel data; the parcel

layer is considered an Index Parcel Layer not a Cadastral Parcel Layer. For planing purposes only.

Map Printed: 5/21/2020

0 12060

Feet

Prepared by:

www.mi-tech.us

HOLE 1
250 FEET

HOLE 2
300 FEET

HOLE 3
210 FEET

HOLE 5
350 FEET

HOLE 6
200 FEET

HOLE 7
200 FEET

HOLE 8
200 FEET

DISC GOLF /
BASEBALL /

SOCCER
PARKING

HOLE 9
340 FEET

PLAYGROUND /
SHELTER /

VOLLEYBALL
PARKING

TENNIS /
BASKETBALL

PARKING

DISC GOLF BASKET (END OF HOLE)

DISC GOLF TEE PAD (BEGINNING OF HOLE)
6-2-2020 - CDG

LIBERTY PARK DISC GOLF COURSE
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

HOLE 4
275 FEET



 
 

 
227800 SNOWBIRD AVENUE | WAUSAU, WI 54401 

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

MEETING/DATE: Plan Commission, June 10, 2020 

ITEM: Discussion and approval of Resolution No. PC-2020-01, recommending approval of the 
2020 Town of Rib Mountain Comprehensive Plan to the Town Board. 

FROM: Jared Wehner, Director of Community Development 
 
 

BACKGROUND 

This is step 1 in the adoption process of the comprehensive plan. Once the resolution is passed, the Town 
Board selects a public hearing date and class 1 public hearing notice is published in the Wausau Daily Herald 
30 days prior to the hearing date. The 30-day period is time for the public to give their final review and 
comments. At the public hearing the Board will hear in last final public comments, discuss any 
considerations and either adopt the comprehensive plan by ordinance or send the document back to Plan 
Commission for review. If the comprehensive plan is adopted, then the document is distributed as required 
by State Statute.  

PREVIOUS ACTIONS: Plan Commission approved the final draft on May 13, 2020 

STAFF COMMENTS: Staff believes the document is and ready for Board review and public hearing. 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Resolution No. PC-2020-01 

Link to June 10, 2020 Final Draft of the Comprehensive Plan 
 

POSSIBLE ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN 

A) Move to approve Resolution No. PC-2020-01, starting the approval process. 
B) Move to approve Resolution No. PC-2020-01 with changes to the document and starting the approval 

process. 
C) Move to deny Resolution No. PC-2020-01, sending the document back to staff for considerable changes 

and bring back on the next available Plan Commission agenda. 

REQUESTED ACTION: Staff recommends the approval resolution no. PC-2020-01, starting the approval 
process.  

FURTHER ACTION(S): Forward Resolution No. PC-2020-01 to the Board for action on the 6/16 agenda [Staff] 

 

https://townofribmountain-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jwehner_townofribmountain_org/Ea5JRdceHUJIpfCokMLxAlgBF6-r06ZChalzC4tqadaFOA?e=CNOwqo


 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
TOWN OF RIB MOUNTAIN, MARATHON COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

RESOLUTION NO. PC-2020-01 
 
The Plan Commission of the Town of Rib Mountain, Marathon County, Wisconsin, by this resolution, adopted on proper 
notice with a quorum and by a roll call vote of a majority of the town plan commission present and voting resolves and 
recommends to the town board of the Town of Rib Mountain as follows: 
 

▪ Adoption of the Town of Rib Mountain 2020 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The Town of Rib Mountain Plan Commission, by this resolution, further resolves and orders as follows: 
 
All maps and other materials noted and attached as exhibits to the Town of Rib Mountain 2020 Comprehensive Plan are 
incorporated into and made a part of the Town of Rib Mountain 2020 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The vote of the town plan commission in regard to this resolution shall be recorded by the clerk of the town plan 
commission in the official minutes of the Town of Town of Rib Mountain Plan Commission. 
 
The town clerk shall properly post or publish this resolution as required under s. 60.80, Wis. stats. 
 
Adopted this _____ day of June 2020. 

 

   
Jay Wittman, Chair  Ryan Burnett, Vice Chair 

   

Jim Hampton  Steve Plunkett 

 
  

Mary Kate Riordan  Thomas Steele 

 
  

Tonia Westphal   

 
 
Attest: 

 
Paul Kufahl, Plan Commission Clerk 

 
 
Attachment: Town of Rib Mountain 2020 Comprehensive Plan   



Staff Report 
Date Modified: June 5, 2020 
 

To:    Town Board of Supervisors 
 

CC:  Building Inspector 
 

From:  Jared Wehner, Director of Community Development/Zoning Administrator 
 

Subject: Director and Department Projects and Meetings Report 

Attachment:      FY 2020 Building Permits 

 

Meetings and Conversations: 
Date: Contact: Description:  

5/13/2020 MCDEVCO Weekly Municipalities meeting 

5/20/2020 MCDEVCO Weekly Municipalities meeting 

5/27/2020 MCDEVCO Weekly Municipalities meeting 

5/27/2020 K.R. Potential new business in the Fast Signs building. 

6/3/2020 MCDEVCO Weekly Municipalities meeting 

  

Projects: 
Date: Project: Description:  

5/13/2020 Comprehensive 
Plan Update 

The resolution will be forwarded onto the Board where they will select a public 
hearing date. Ideally the hearing date will occur on 7/21/2020. 

5/28/2020 Unnamed Road The public survey is live. As of 3:00 PM 5/28/2020 there has been 138 responses so 
far. This is scheduled to close at 12:00 AM, July 1, 2020. 

 Stone Horizon 
Subdivision 

The developer will be coming forward with the letter of credit and will start 
construction on the road. 

 

Notes: 
The Finance and Personnel Committee has directed staff to pursue a feasibility study to create a TIF district. This TIF 
district’s main purpose would be for infrastructure improvements to make development more appealing in areas east of 
Rib Mountain Drive and west of Swan Avenue. A map of the proposed area is attached.   
 
Thank you, 
 
Jared Wehner 
Director of Community Development 



2020 Permit List

86 # Permits ‐ Total YTD YTD Totals 5,491,268.00$       14,381.25$     115,566.00$   1,950.00$       

86 # Permits ‐ Filtered Filtered Totals 5,491,268.00$       14,381.25$     115,566.00$   1,950.00$       

Permit # Property Owner Contractor Street Address Date Project Type Permits Req'd Description County PIN Parcel Number Construction $ Permit $ Bond $ Park $

2020‐001 Sue Sheils Tundraland Home Impr 153512 Larkspur Ln 7‐Jan RR C Window Replacement 231‐0106 34.90.000.010.01.00 9,453.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐002 Mountain View Church JAS Construction 152302 FIDDLEHEAD LN 9‐Jan CR C Truss Repair 154‐0945 34.152807.013.020.00.00 12,900.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐003 Matt Johnson Reimer Construction 150090 PEREGRINE WAY 13‐Jan RR C, E, P Kitchen Remodel 044‐0143 34.792.000.021.00.00 18,000.00$            85.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐004 Glass Nickel Pizza Finishing Touch Sign 227255 Rib Mountain Dr 13‐Jan SI Z New Business Signage 101‐0992 34.102807.001.008.00.00 8,000.00$               132.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐005 180 Cuts Finishing Touch Sign 227307 RIB MOUNTAIN DR 21‐Jan SI Z Business Wall Signage 034‐0934 34.032807.015.032.00.00 5,000.00$               117.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐006 Larson Niziolek Builders 225901 BLUEGILL AV 3‐Feb RA C, E Garage Addition 114‐0023 34.097.000.008.00.00 13,000.00$            150.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐007 Hansen Tundraland Home Impr 225556 Indigo Dr 3‐Feb RR C Window Replacement 145‐0091 34.459.000.027.00.00 15,559.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐008 Niksich Malbrit Mechanical 152440 Foxsedge Ln 7‐Feb MC H New Gas Furnace 232‐0015 34.175.000.015.00.00 2,700.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐009 TNC Development / Service Master Todd Frank 225005 LILAC AV 11‐Feb CR C, E, P Add Training Room and Office 145‐0993 34.142807.0GL.003.04.00 40,000.00$            350.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐010 Fore Development Creative Sign 225547 RIB MOUNTAIN DR 20‐Feb SI C Monument Sign 142‐0967 34.142807.006.032.00.00 8,900.00$               128.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐011 Blaschka Eugene Zoromski 224341 Bittersweet Rd 21‐Feb RA C, E, P, H, Z Add sitting area to kitchen 153‐0077 34.346.000.010.00.00 40,000.00$            139.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐012 Jiffy Lube Pinnacle Construction 225547 RIB MOUNTAIN DR 28‐Apr CB C, P, H, Z New Building 142‐0967 34.142807.006.032.00.00 1,126,500.00$       650.00$           20,257.00$      ‐$                 

2020‐013 TDS Telecom Bushman Sign 227040 RIB MOUNTAIN DR 25‐Feb SI Z New Business Signage 101‐0889 34.102807.002.022.00.00 5,000.00$               114.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐014 Debbie Igl Hall Construction 152451 PARROT LN 26‐Feb RR C,E,P Bathroom Remodel 112‐0040 34.666.000.003.00.00 26,000.00$            76.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐015 Mark Peters Self 223851 LAKESHORE DR 2‐Mar RR C,E,P,H Lower Level Kitchen Addition 245‐0006 34.660.001.006.00.00 20,000.00$            110.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐016 Palecek Verhasselt Construction 153620 Shoreland Ln 2‐Mar RA C,E,P,H Addition and Interior Remodel 145‐0909 34.142807.0GL.011.05.00 200,000.00$          267.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐017 Wimmer/Verizon Buell Consulting / Rosstelecom 226483 Woodduck Ln 4‐Mar CR Z Class II Collocation 113‐0977 34.112807.010.012.00.00 15,000.00$            350.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐018 Jonnee Bauer Agency Super Lettering 227088 Rib Mountain Dr 6‐Mar SI Z New Business Signage 101‐0889 34.102807.002.022.00.00 650.00$                  85.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐019 Beverly Aschebrock Current Connections 226879 Canary Av 17‐Mar MC E Service Upgrade 101‐0011 34.331.002.001.00.00 1,800.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐020 Kennedy, Ryan Tundraland Home Impr 227261 Partridge Av 18‐Mar RR C Window Replacement 091‐0026 34.755.000.026.00.00 16,871.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐021 Jenine Larson Kevin LaPorte 225107 LAKESHORE DR 23‐Mar RR C Siding Replacement 145‐0980 34.142807.0GL.003.17.00 40,000.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐022 Brumbaugh Royalty Custom Homes 150778 Strawberry Ln 10‐Apr SF C, E, P, H, Z New Single Family #N/A 34.762.000.031.00.00 320,000.00$          1,367.00$        1,000.00$        650.00$          

2020‐023 Stan Smith R. Ross Construction 150909 Baltimore Ln 24‐Mar RR C Shingle to Metal Roof 102‐0013 34.75.006.001.00.00 13,000.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐024 Randy Winter R. Ross Construction 151005 Lily Ln 24‐Mar RR C Chimney Repair 153‐0033 34.25.004.002.00.00 7,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐025 Diane Christians Quality Construction of CWI 150845 Lavender Ln 30‐Mar RR C Shingle to Metal Roof 153‐0075 34.346.000.008.00.00 26,600.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐026 Finamore Mike Polecheck 225633 Indigo Dr 2‐Apr DK C Deck Replacement 145‐0094 34.459.000.030.00.00 15,000.00$            100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐027 Jan Klein Elite Construction 152345 SOUTH MOUNTAIN RD 13‐Apr RA C, E,  Bedroom Addition 221‐0964 34.222807.001.018.00.00 35,000.00$            168.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐028 Bob Massop Self 150231 Bellflower St 13‐Apr DK C, Z Covered Porch/Deck 161‐0066 34.760.000.001.00.00 28,000.00$            100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐029 Michaela Walters Self 152085 SOUTH MOUNTAIN RD 22‐Apr AB C, Z Yard Shed 221‐0012 34.223.000.002.00.00 3,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐030 Leah Graf Countryside Fence 150950 Baltimore Ln 17‐Apr FN Z Fence Install 102‐0040 34.735.002.008.00.00 5,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐031 Brad Fehl Self 226853 Canary Av 17‐Apr AB C, Z Yard Shed 101‐0017 34.331.002.007.00.00 4,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐032 Wayne Lambrecht Ken Bauer Construction 223937 ROSE AV 14‐Apr RR P (2) Bath Tub Replacements 232‐0016 34.175.000.016.00.00 11,000.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐033 Dollar Tree Summit General Contr. 4703 Rib Mountain Dr 23‐Apr CB Z New Commercial Building #N/A #N/A 1,260,000.00$       650.00$           47,309.00$      ‐$                 

2020‐034 Gusman K5 Construction 223425 Magnolia Av 14‐Apr RA C, E, Z 3 Season Room Addition 222‐0025 34.970.000.005.00.00 28,000.00$            124.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐035 Culvers Brian Luedtke & Assoc Not Assigned 28‐Apr CB C, P, H, Z New Commercial Building #N/A #N/A 850,000.00$          650.00$           45,000.00$      ‐$                 

2020‐036 Austin Landowski Self 222003 Buttercup Rd 17‐Apr RR C Stair Rebuild 265‐0953 34.262807.0GL.006.09.00 2,500.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐037 Dave Mikalfsky Solid Rock Builders 149312 MANDARIN LN 17‐Apr DK C Deck Replacement 043‐0041 34.610.000.006.00.00 9,000.00$               75.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐038 Royalty Custom Homes Royalty Custom Homes 150771 Lavender Ln 29‐Apr SF C, E, P, H, Z New Single Family 164‐0010 34.762.000.010.00 320,000.00$          1,354.00$        1,000.00$        650.00$          

2020‐039 Mary Cole Randy Koffarnus 224234 Rose Av 29‐Apr RA C, E, H, Z 16x16 Addition 154‐0165 34.915.001.006.00.00 60,000.00$            164.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐040 Victoria Zuber Seffrood Property Pros 152401 Flax Ln 23‐Apr RR C, E, P Bathroom Remodel 143‐0001 34.675.000.001.00.00 16,000.00$            67.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐041 Vandervest American Fence 224012 Magnolia Av 23‐Apr FN Z Backyard Fence 222‐0953 Not Assigned 3,200.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐042 Rick & Gayle Swanson Fleming and Sons 152441 Lily Ln 28‐Apr RA C, E, Z Addition and Bath Remodel 143‐0040 34.590.000.023.00.00 49,500.00$            244.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐043 Dollar Tree D&L Signs Not Assigned 27‐Apr SI Z Building Signage #N/A #N/A 3,000.00$               197.25$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐044 John Fink Self 219790 County Road KK 28‐Apr AB C, E, Z Detached Garage 334‐0999 34.332807.013.001.00.00 18,000.00$            160.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 



2020 Permit List

86 # Permits ‐ Total YTD YTD Totals 5,491,268.00$       14,381.25$     115,566.00$   1,950.00$       

86 # Permits ‐ Filtered Filtered Totals 5,491,268.00$       14,381.25$     115,566.00$   1,950.00$       

Permit # Property Owner Contractor Street Address Date Project Type Permits Req'd Description County PIN Parcel Number Construction $ Permit $ Bond $ Park $

2020‐045 Willard Anderson Pinno Buildings 150848 Woodthrush Ln 29‐Apr AB C, Z Detached Garage 102‐0046 34.735.003.005.00.00 33,850.00$            133.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐046 Adam Knospe Bob's Electric 152309 South Mountain Rd 29‐Apr MC E Service Upgrade 221‐0999 34.222807.001.001.00.00 2,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐047 Wayne Baneck Self 223132 Azalea Rd 29‐Apr DK C Rebuild Landing/Front Steps 234‐0987 34.232807.013.013.00.00 355.00$                  50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐048 Morrison Royalty Custom Homes 150771 Strawberry Ln 28‐May SF C, E, P, H, Z New Single Family #N/A 34.762.000.023.00.00 320,000.00$          1,408.00$        1,000.00$        650.00$          

2020‐049 Hendrikson Tundraland Home Impr 148978 Mockingbird Ln 4‐May RR C Window Replacement 054‐0999 34.052807.013.000.00.00 7,239.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐050 Discount Tire Walton Signage 225931 Rib Mountain Dr 5/ SI Z New Business Signage #N/A #N/A 235.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐051 Jenine Larson Kevin LaPorte 225107 LAKESHORE DR 7‐May DK Z, C Deck Addition 145‐0980 34.142807.0GL.003.17.00 12,000.00$            100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐052 Brad Conklin Self 151090 Marigold Rd 7‐May AB Z, C Detached Shed 273‐0022 34.15.000.021.00.00 4,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐053 Clements Insurance Stratford Sign 151577 Kingfisher Ln 7‐May SI Z New Business Signage 104‐0963 34.102807.014.022.00.00 10,287.00$            150.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐054 Michael & Dorothy Baxter Eric Franken 153268 Ambrosia Ln 8‐May MC E Electrical Service Upgrade 265‐0004 34.256.000.008.00.00 1,500.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐055 Galen Olson Tundraland Home Impr 227425 Pheasant Av 8‐May RR C Window Replacement 044‐0119 34.615.005.002.00.00 25,376.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐056 Rich & Sharon Wagner Countryside Fence 226530 Swan Av 12‐May FN Z New Fence 112‐0031 34.690.000.003.00.00 5,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐057 Sharon Bennett American Fence 223167 Woodsmoke Rd 13‐May FN Z New Fence 201‐0017 34.140.000.041.00.00 7,500.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐058 Paul Pergolski Paul Pergolski 227251 Pheasant Av 15‐May RR C Kitchen Update 091‐0062 34.757.000.062.00.00 6,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐059 Michael Mead Self 221133 County Road KK 20‐May AB C, E Rebuild Detached Garage 273‐0032 34.15.000.001.01.00 6,000.00$               123.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐060 John Kruit Self 146850 Daisy Rd 20‐May DK C, E Covered Porch/Deck 074‐0993 34.072807.015.003.00.00 5,000.00$               125.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐061 Jim Shilt Self 225904 Bluegill Av 20‐May RR C, E Garage Rebuild 113‐0968 34.112807.012.004.00.00 45,000.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐062 Howe, Elizabeth & Matt Self 150212 Skylark Ln 20‐May DK, RR C Deck, Window & Siding Update 041‐0989 34.042807.003.004.00.00 30,000.00$            100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐063 Mark Peters Self 223851 LAKESHORE DR 20‐May DK C Deck Addition 245‐0006 34.660.001.006.00.00 6,000.00$               100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐064 Loos, Tamara Self 227265 Heron Av 20‐May RR C Window, Siding, Roofing Update 101‐0984 34.102807.001.016.00.00 15,000.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐065 Hall, Leroy Brent Howe 149971 Skylark Ln 26‐May AB C, E, H, Z Detached Garage 041‐0016 34.805.000.016.00.00 22,000.00$            127.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐066 Kilty, Troy Wheels Excav/Northwoods Conc. 146750 Crocus Rd 21‐May RR C Egress Windows 182‐0017 34.930.002.007.00.00 2,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐067 Kocha, Jeff and Joelle Heartland Custom Homes 151678 Lily Ln 5/ RR C, E, P, H Remodel after Fire 154‐0121 34.775.008.007.00.00 50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐068 Anderson, John Self 151017 Baltimore Ln 27‐May AB C, Z Detached Shed 102‐0017 34.75.006.005.00.00 2,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐069 Randall, Jeff Self 148092 Spring Creek Dr 27‐May RA C, E, P, H, Z Master Bedroom Addition 053‐0011 34.391.001.025.00.00 20,000.00$            270.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐070 Gall, Steven & Tanya Self 227207 Bobolink Av 27‐May RF Z Seasonal Swimming Pool 102‐0060 34.50.001.004.00.00 5,000.00$               100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐071 William Prinz Countryside Fence 150289 Skylark Ln 27‐May FN Z Fence Addition 041‐0052 34.805.000.052.00.00 1,200.00$               25.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐072 AT&T / Northwest Communications SAC Wireless 222501 Mosinee Tower Rd 5/ MC Z Cell Tower Equipment Upgrade 224‐0993 34.222807.016.001.00.00 20,000.00$            350.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐073 Scanlon Self 223158 Thimbleberry Ct 29‐May AB Z, C Garden Shed 204‐0042 34.947.000.034.00.00 4,800.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐074 Schweickhardt Brian Cater 223922 Orchid Ln 1‐Jun RA C, E, H, Z Family Room Addition 221‐0973 34.222807.002.011.00.00 40,000.00$            188.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐075 Smith, Stan Robert Ross 150909 Baltimore Ln 1‐Jun RA C, Z Covered Porch/Deck 102‐0013 34.75.006.001.00.00 6,000.00$               125.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐076 Oelig, Charles & Denise Countryside Fence 223180 Azalea Rd 29‐May FN Z New Fence 234‐0990 34.232807.013.010.00.00 3,992.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐077 Radloff Tundraland Home Impr 221800 Wintergreen Rd 29‐May RR P Tub/Shower Upgrade 262‐0004 34.35.000.004.00.00 11,336.00$            50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐078 Christiansen Gore Electric 221680 Wintergreen Rd 1‐Jun MC E New Panel 263‐0997 34.262807.010.002.00.00 1,200.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐079 Robers, Spenser Berg Sales 146695 Seneca Ln 2‐Jun MC E Service Upgrade 182‐0015 34.930.002.005.00.00 2,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐080 Nowak, Trent NC Mechanical 151830 Fern Ln 2‐Jun MC E Service Upgrade 154‐0077 34.770.005.011.00.00 2,000.00$               50.00$             ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐081 Knospe, Adam Self 152309 South Mountain Rd 2‐Jun AB C Detached Garage 221‐0999 34.222807.001.001.00.00 12,000.00$            127.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐082 Conger, John Countryside Fence 150211 Skylark Ln 2‐Jun FN Z Replacing Existing Fence 041‐0051 34.805.000.051.00.00 500.00$                  ‐$                  ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐083 Olsen, Debra Creative Home Improvement 152060 Fiddlehead Ln 6/ RA C, E, P, H, Z House Addition 154‐0069 34.770.005.003.00.00 64,000.00$            372.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐084 Blanchard, Dean Self 227334 Heron Av 6/ FN/AB C, Z New Fence  034‐0095 34.412.002.019.00.00 5,000.00$               50.00$            

2020‐085 Huggenvik, Jessica Kevin Kalk 151709 LILY LN 4‐Jun DK C, Z Deck Addition 154‐0148 34.775.010.012.00.00 10,000.00$            100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐086 Nelson, Justin & Kristy Self 227821 Snowbird Av 4‐Jun RF Z Swimming Pool 043‐0991 34.042807.009.009.00.00 2,000.00$               100.00$           ‐$                  ‐$                 

2020‐087


	Agenda
	PC Minutes 200513
	CUP Page Driveway
	Pre-app Disc Golf at Liberty Park
	Comp Plan Adoption Resolution
	Director Report & Permit List



